          1

          2  CITY COUNCIL

          3

             CITY OF NEW YORK

          4  -------------------------------x

             THE TRANSCRIPT OF THE MINUTES

          5

                       of the

          6

             COMMITTEE ON FINANCE

          7  (Held Jointly With)

             COMMITTEE ON PUBLIC SAFETY

          8  RE: DISTRICT ATTORNEYS

             SPECIAL NARCOTICS PROSECUTOR

          9  -------------------------------x

                            May 20, 1999

         10                 Start:  4:30 p.m.

                            Recess: 5:45 p.m.

         11

                            City Hall

         12                 Council Chambers

                            New York, New York

         13

         14       B E F O R E:

         15              SHELDON LEFFLER

                                           Chairperson,

         16

                         JUANITA WATKINS,

         17                                Co-Chair

         18              COUNCIL MEMBERS:   Juanita Watkins

                                            Stanley Michels

         19                                 Victor Robles

                                            Madeline Provenzano

         20                                 Philip Reed

                                            Martin Golden

         21                                 Ronnie Eldridge

                                            Angel Rodriguez

         22

         23

         24       LEGAL-EASE COURT REPORTING SERVICES, INC.

                         217 Broadway -  Suite 511

         25              New York, New York 10007

                              (800) 756-3410

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            2

          1

          2  A P P E A R A N C E S

          3

             Robert M. Morgenthau

          4  District Attorney

             New York County

          5

             Richard A. Brown

          6  District Attorney

             Queens County

          7

             Robert T. Johnson

          8  District Attorney

             Bronx County

          9

             District Attorney Murphy

         10  District Attorney

             Richmond County

         11

             Dave Lheir

         12  Office of Richmond County District Attorney

         13  Al Tischman

             Chief Assistant

         14  Office of Brooklyn District Attorney

         15  Anthony Shepis

             Administrative Chief

         16  Office of Bronx District Attorney

         17  Bridget G. Brennan

             Special Narcotics Prosecutor

         18

         19

         20

         21

         22

         23

         24

         25

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            3

          1  DISTRICT ATTORNEYS SPECIAL NARCOTICS PROSECUTOR

          2                 CHAIRPERSON LEFFLER: I am now going

          3  to turn over chairing of this next portion to the

          4  Chair of the Subcommittee on District Attorneys,

          5  Courts and Investigations, Juanita Watkins, and then

          6  we will proceed with the DAs' section.

          7                 CO-CHAIRPERSON WATKINS: Ladies and

          8  gentlemen, we apologize for this delay.

          9                 I understand that since Mr.

         10  Morgenthau and Mr. Johnson, who were here first, are

         11  so delighted that they are not running this year for

         12  re-election -- oh, you are running? I thought only

         13  DA Brown had to run. Why did the newspapers print

         14  only one of you? Hmmm. But I guess because the rest

         15  of you must have sufficient funds, and the Queens DA

         16  is the one that has to run off to a fundraiser, do I

         17  understand that the consensus is in agreement to let

         18  him go first? See, I am no dummy, I will let the DAs

         19  decide and then I will follow along.

         20                 Mr. Murphy.

         21                 DISTRICT ATTORNEY MURPHY: Thank you,

         22  very much, Councilwoman Watkins, and I appreciate

         23  the indulgence. I am the only one with a contested

         24  election. I also appreciate the opportunity to have

         25  this annual reunion with my fellow District
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          2  Attorneys, and I think, unfortunately the chorus

          3  will probably sound, as it has for the last several

          4  years, nevertheless it is something we have to go

          5  through and we should go through.

          6                 I was interested during the course of

          7  previous speakers hearing concerns about the process

          8  that was used in formulating the positions that we

          9  all take on budget, and the Council should know that

         10  once again we were not consulted before the Mayoral

         11  budget was set forth about what our needs would be,

         12  and so for the first time we get the opportunity to

         13  present our budget needs to the City Council without

         14  the benefit of any consultation with anybody in the

         15  process.

         16                 So, what we are handed is what we are

         17  handed, not what we ask for, and everyone on the

         18  Council should understand that as we come here we

         19  are basically making our points for the first time.

         20  We have objected to that, we have made note of that

         21  in the past, but it has not changed and it didn't

         22  change this year.

         23                 From my own perspective I have

         24  provided the Council with a handout, I am not going

         25  to waste your time by reading it or going into the
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          2  absolute particulars of it, suffice it to say I

          3  would like to highlight what I think are the points

          4  that concern me most, and from my perspective

          5  bespeak the needs of the people of Richmond County,

          6  also known as Staten Island.

          7                 I at the moment am serviced in my

          8  management informations system by a single

          9  individual, managing an antiquated system and while

         10  we have been provided with the opportunity of some

         11  capital funds to install a new system, it awaits our

         12  move into new facilities, which have been in the

         13  offing for some four years.

         14                 When that system gets up and

         15  operated, we face a baseline cut, a proposed

         16  baseline cut of $75,000 in our MIS program.

         17                 This is absolutely ridiculous because

         18  that baseline cut is based on efficiencies, and

         19  since I have only a single person charged with

         20  upkeep, maintenance, improvement, and all of the

         21  other aspects of management information service, I

         22  need additional personnel and no such thing as

         23  baseline cuts that will provide any such, anything

         24  that comes near efficiency for our system which will

         25  be in place.
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          2                 Once again, I implore the City

          3  Council to provide us with funds for a civilian

          4  investigative staff in my office. We do not have

          5  such a unit within the office, we are the only one

          6  of the District Attorney's Offices that does not

          7  have civilian investigators.

          8                 The current policy in the New York

          9  City Police Department is that detectives who retire

         10  from my detective squad were the only investigators

         11  available to me. When those detectives retire, they

         12  are not replaced. I am at the present time short

         13  some four or five detectives in my squad and I have

         14  no means of supplementing my ability to do any kind

         15  of investigation because I don't have a civilian

         16  investigative staff.

         17                 We have been the beneficiary of an

         18  increased part in Criminal Court. We have had a

         19  weekend court set up. All of these enhancements in

         20  our ability to address an increased caseload in our

         21  Criminal Court have been done without additional

         22  staffing for my Criminal Court.

         23                 I have two to three assistants who

         24  work on weekends, I have assistants who staff a

         25  night complaint room that is open until 1:00 a.m.,
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          2  all of that has to be done with existing staff. We

          3  have had new court parts created and we had the

          4  weekend court and the night complaint room without

          5  any additional staff. It is about time we got funded

          6  with personnel for those efforts.

          7                 We anticipated the problem that is

          8  now befronting (sic) our entire nation of youth

          9  violence, by establishing a youth violence unit a

         10  year ago January. It wasn't in response to a column

         11  bind (sic) or anything which is of a more recent

         12  nature.

         13                 Our Youth Violence Unit is basically

         14  dedicated to responding to gang problems, and yes,

         15  indeed, we have gang problems on Staten Island, as I

         16  am sure my colleagues will attest to and the rest of

         17  the City. It might be a strange thing to hear that

         18  we have a problem on Staten Island, but we indeed

         19  do.

         20                 But more importantly, in the area of

         21  youth violence, I think it is worthwhile expending

         22  monies on prevention efforts and to that end we are

         23  working closely with the schools on Staten Island

         24  and with the Police Department on detecting problems

         25  before they arise to the level of the need for a
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          2  full-fledged criminal prosecution.

          3                 One of the things that we proposed in

          4  our handout is a truancy program, and yes, I am

          5  without pride, I am stealing it from Joe Hynes, and

          6  the very effective truancy program that he has in

          7  Kings County, and we hope to get that underway as

          8  one of our major efforts in the area of prevention

          9  of youth violence and indeed youth mischief of all

         10  kinds.

         11                 And on the other end of the age

         12  spectrum, we have had a significant increase in the

         13  number of lengthy financial-type investigations that

         14  have to be done to look into the complaints of our

         15  senior citizens. There are, in addition to physical

         16  abuse cases, cases of financial abuse, by

         17  caregivers, whether they are members of the family

         18  or whether they are hired caregivers, and in an

         19  effort to save seniors' money, well earned and well

         20  saved, that requires a great deal of financial

         21  investigation, and I need personnel to be able to

         22  conduct those investigations.

         23                 It is a very unfortunate circumstance

         24  that we face that type of criminal behavior, but we

         25  are finding that there is a lot of it, and as the
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          2  significance of that portion of our population

          3  grows, I am sure it will continue. And so we are

          4  attending to the needs of both ends of the age

          5  spectrum.

          6                 The Council asked three specific

          7  questions or questions about three specific areas

          8  which I would just like to take a moment to address

          9  at the moment.

         10                 The first was in the area of the

         11  narcotics initiative and the monies that were given

         12  to us in that area. Those monies went for buy money

         13  on the OTPS side, buy money, surveillance equipment,

         14  and witness relocation.

         15                 On the personnel side we were able to

         16  support parts of the salaries of two entry level

         17  Assistant District Attorneys.

         18                 But the narcotics initiative, at

         19  least as it has impacted on our community, has meant

         20  that 50 percent of our indictments are for narcotics

         21  offenses, and our Criminal Court workload increased

         22  from about 20 something cases a day to over 40 cases

         23  a day, all of the increase being narcotics cases.

         24                 The Narcotics Initiative has

         25  significantly impacted on the workload of our
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          2  criminal court, it is part of the reason for the

          3  weekend court and for the night complaint room

          4  operation. So that while we appreciate the monies

          5  that were given to us by the Speaker, they do not

          6  adequately address the impact that the Narcotics

          7  Initiative of the Police Department has had on the

          8  operation of the District Attorneys' Office.

          9                 A second area that the Council was

         10  concerned with was the arrest to arraignment

         11  arrangement. While we are happy with the $60,000

         12  that we got for our contributions to speeding up

         13  that process, and while we have had I think some

         14  successes and look forward to even greater successes

         15  in the future, that $60,000 really doesn't provide

         16  for the full funding of anything. It simply means

         17  that we can supplement some salary concerns and some

         18  of our OTPS needs, but it really is not adequate.

         19                 The final area that the Council asked

         20  about was the status of grants. We now administer

         21  eight separate grants in our office, and the total

         22  monies are in excess of a half a million dollars,

         23  but as with the grants all across the Board, it is a

         24  very tentative way of funding. Were any one of those

         25  to be not renewed or any one denied, we would need
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          2  to, in order to continue what has been successfully

          3  experiments, we would need to have them

          4  supplemented.

          5                 At the moment, only two of those

          6  grants have been renewed so that close to half a

          7  million dollars worth of grants we are uncertain of

          8  and if they go, some experiments which have in fact

          9  proved useful and effective will wind up being

         10  unfunded and I will certainly have to come to the

         11  Council to ask for it, because a quick mathematical

         12  calculation sees a half a million dollars are more

         13  than a tenth of my entire budget.

         14                 The two other areas that I just

         15  briefly would like to mention, I continue to have

         16  burgeoning of obligations on my Appeals Bureau due

         17  to the successes of my Trial Bureau, people who get

         18  convicted aren't happy about it and they generally

         19  take appeals and those appeals are costly, both in

         20  terms of personnel and other than personnel services

         21  monies.

         22                 And finally, we have submitted a

         23  grant proposal, not included in the eight that I

         24  referred to, to the federal government for a

         25  community prosecution effort.
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          2                 This is a brand new concept around

          3  the country, some of my colleagues already have

          4  community prosecution efforts. This will be our

          5  first attempt at it. But in an effort to get the

          6  federal grant, we have to come up with matching

          7  funds. At the moment I don't have anything even

          8  close to what I would need in order to obtain monies

          9  from the federal government and so I have included

         10  in our proposal sufficient monies to cover a

         11  supplement to what we hope to get from the federal

         12  government.

         13                 If we don't get it, I still would

         14  like to do the community prosecution effort and so

         15  my request has reflected the entire budget for the

         16  needs of community prosecution in Richmond County.

         17                 I know that most of what I have said

         18  constitutes an absolute dream list, but in my mind,

         19  it is more than that, it constitutes the need for

         20  the people of Staten Island which continues to be a

         21  growing borough and community within the City of New

         22  York.

         23                 I thank you for your attention and

         24  the opportunity to speak to you this afternoon. I do

         25  have to get out of here, but I am leaving you in the
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          2  capable hands of my Chief Assistant Dave Lheir, who

          3  would be happy to answer any questions that you

          4  might have.

          5                 Thank you.

          6                 CO-CHAIRPERSON WATKINS: Well, there

          7  is one I am going to ask you because in case he

          8  overstates or understates, he might get in trouble.

          9                 Now, when it comes to the personnel

         10  issues that you spoke about, what minimum number,

         11  dollar amount, if we could come up with it on the

         12  Council -- I mean, what are we really talking about

         13  so that if we can come close to what you estimate

         14  you need?

         15                 DISTRICT ATTORNEY MURPHY: I have

         16  asked for a million and a half dollars in addition

         17  for personnel funds. And that is a baseline salary

         18  figure, it doesn't address itself to something that

         19  Mr. Morgenthau is going to address and that is a

         20  concern for raises.

         21                 But I have asked for that million and

         22  a half, I truly believe that the number of

         23  assistants and other personnel services that I have

         24  asked for in my handout requires that million and a

         25  half dollars.
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          2                 CO-CHAIRPERSON WATKINS: Okay, thank

          3  you very much.

          4                 DISTRICT ATTORNEY MURPHY: Thank you

          5  very much.

          6                 CO-CHAIRPERSON WATKINS: Good luck.

          7                 DISTRICT ATTORNEY MURPHY: Thank you.

          8                 CO-CHAIRPERSON WATKINS: We will

          9  reserve some of the questions for those who stay

         10  behind, as I listen to DA Brown.

         11                 DISTRICT ATTORNEY BROWN: Thank you. I

         12  apologize also for the fact that I am going to have

         13  to "eat and run" as they say, but I leave you in the

         14  capable hands, after I do a brief bit of testimony

         15  for you, of my colleagues Rob Johnson and Mr.

         16  Morgenthau and the others who are here, together

         17  with our staff people who are here to respond to any

         18  questions as well.

         19                 When I last testified before you nine

         20  weeks ago, I pointed out that the Mayor's

         21  Preliminary Budget left us with rather three gaping

         22  holes in our budget for Fiscal 2000, holes which if

         23  not filled would mean a loss to us of about $2.2

         24  million.

         25                 I explained to you that the
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          2  Preliminary Budget did not include in it our airport

          3  investigations money, which last year was

          4  appropriated at $500,000 and which has been provided

          5  every year for the past seven years at the Council's

          6  insistence.

          7                 I mentioned the fact that we still

          8  did not have any definitive response on our arrest

          9  to arraignment monies, which last year for us

         10  amounted to $700,000 up front and back end money of

         11  some $530,000 predicated upon our having met the

         12  goals that the City set for us.

         13                 And finally, I pointed out that the

         14  budget did not include in it the almost $500,000

         15  that the Council had provided to handle the fight

         16  against the proliferation of drugs in our

         17  neighborhoods.

         18                 The Mayor's Preliminary Budget also

         19  did not include monies for a number of other

         20  important new initiatives. I had listed, for

         21  example, our Auto Crime Task Force, our School

         22  Anti-Violence Project, our Victims Support Program,

         23  I told you that we needed additional monies to

         24  target youth gang violence and school-related crimes

         25  that we needed money as well, for witness
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          2  protection, for community prosecutions, and you

          3  specifically may recall that we talked about the

          4  establishment in Queens of a child advocacy center.

          5                 In any event, I provided you at that

          6  time with a total and complete document which

          7  detailed for you everything that I had talked about.

          8  We provided additional copies to you today.

          9                 Regrettably, the Mayor's Executive

         10  Budget pretty much mirrors his Preliminary Budget,

         11  except to the extent that there is in the budget

         12  some $530,000 as far as Queens is concerned, which

         13  is the back-end money of the arrest to arraignment

         14  or the arrest and case processing dollars.

         15                 They have switched it around on us,

         16  if you will, not providing the front-end money that

         17  they provided last year, which was $700,000, but

         18  rather giving us the back-end money and then there

         19  are problems in terms of how they want to set their

         20  goals and the fact that it would be virtually

         21  impossible for us to budget on the basis of that

         22  which has been offered to us.

         23                 But in any event, there still exists

         24  a $1.7 million hole in my budget, off last year.

         25  There is no money provided for our Airport
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          2  Investigations Unit, there is no money in there for

          3  the Council's Drug Initiative, there is no back-end

          4  money, if you will, for arrest and case processing

          5  money. There is also a two percent cut in Other Than

          6  Personal Services, all of those things remain.

          7                 So, once again we ask the Council,

          8  which has been so responsive to us in the past, to

          9  help us to provide us with the monies that are

         10  necessary for us to continue what I believe are our

         11  very successful efforts to lower the level of

         12  violence in this City and to approve the quality of

         13  life of our residents.

         14                 CO-CHAIRPERSON WATKINS: Judge Brown,

         15  let me ask you and your colleagues something

         16  specifically for the record.

         17                 When you were here last, I believe we

         18  did talk about the fact that with the Mayor's valid

         19  comments about the police doing such a remarkable

         20  job and crime going down and so on, we did talk

         21  about the fact that arresting them was one thing,

         22  but if somebody didn't follow up, prosecute and lock

         23  them up, they would still be out on the street and

         24  that therefore there was a recognized need for money

         25  at your end.
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          2                 This may sound like a silly question,

          3  but have the District Attorneys and the Special

          4  Prosecutor made a pitch to the Administration to

          5  include those things in the budget that you perceive

          6  as real needs in order to continue to get your job

          7  done?

          8                 DISTRICT ATTORNEY BROWN: We

          9  regrettably are not consulted, as District Attorney

         10  Murphy had pointed out a few moments ago, in terms

         11  of the preparation of the Mayor's Preliminary

         12  Budget, we get the opportunity, obviously, to

         13  respond publicly before the Council and in essence

         14  we are asking at that point of the Mayor and of the

         15  City Administration to rectify the problem in their

         16  Executive Budget. But as I just pointed out to you,

         17  in my instance, and I am sure it follows through

         18  with my colleagues, the Executive Budget has pretty

         19  much mirrored the Preliminary Budget.

         20                 CO-CHAIRPERSON WATKINS: But you

         21  didn't send them copies of what we got. You did?

         22                 DISTRICT ATTORNEY BROWN: Oh, yes.

         23                 CO-CHAIRPERSON WATKINS: Well, for the

         24  record again, because with some of these items, you

         25  know, we dance with the Administration annually and
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          2  the assumption is that the Mayor won't put it in

          3  because the Council will somewhere somehow rob Peter

          4  to pay Paul, as far as giving some of the money that

          5  we can come up with to the District Attorneys and

          6  other necessary causes.

          7                 But it is necessary to go on the

          8  record to say that every year it is cut out of the

          9  baseline budget and in order for us to put money

         10  back, we always have to play this game of finding

         11  some place else to cut.

         12                 I hope somebody is listening out

         13  there because it is a known fact you increase

         14  arrests, the prosecution goes up, and you have to

         15  have somebody to do it and somebody to follow up.

         16  So, we are always there to put more money in the

         17  Police Department's budget and we do and it is just

         18  amazing that we don't get asked by the same

         19  Administration to add money to the other end to

         20  continue and complete the job.

         21                 I just thought it ought to be in the

         22  record because we do this every year.

         23                 DISTRICT ATTORNEY BROWN: I don't know

         24  that any of us could have said it any better. And I

         25  trust and I am sure my colleagues trust that those
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          2  across the hall are listening.

          3                 A perfect example, of course, is our

          4  Airport Investigation money, which you have given us

          5  now for seven years in a row and each year we beg to

          6  have it baselined.

          7                 CO-CHAIRPERSON WATKINS: So do we. And

          8  we ask every year for this to be included in the

          9  baseline budget.

         10                 Thank you. Thanks, DA Brown.

         11                 The esteemed DA Morgenthau. Oh, you

         12  are deferring.

         13                 DISTRICT ATTORNEY JOHNSON: Mr.

         14  Morgenthau has graciously deferred, and in addition

         15  to that, I, too, have a commitment, although it is

         16  of a more personal nature, and I apologize, but it

         17  is my wife's birthday and I think it may be more

         18  important than DA Brown's re-election.

         19                 CO-CHAIRPERSON WATKINS: Or you may

         20  have to stay at his house.

         21                 DISTRICT ATTORNEY JOHNSON: That's

         22  correct.

         23                 I will try to be brief. I want to

         24  echo much of what DAs Murphy and Brown said. I just

         25  first of all want to summarize what our budget
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          2  requests are. They are similar to when we appeared

          3  before your Subcommittee just a couple of months

          4  ago, we are requesting of course the annualization

          5  of arrest and case processing money, a restoration

          6  of the drug in initiative money.

          7                 We made a very serious pitch to you

          8  and we hope that you have heard our request for a

          9  gang unit and that deals specifically with the

         10  Department of Correction, and I will go into that a

         11  little bit more in a second.

         12                 As DA Murphy indicated, we don't get

         13  squad personnel, the New York City Police Detectives

         14  replaced at this point. We are requesting funding

         15  for investigative personnel that we could hire to

         16  replace them.

         17                 And in addition to that, we have --

         18                 CO-CHAIRPERSON WATKINS: DA Johnson,

         19  may I just interrupt?

         20                 DISTRICT ATTORNEY JOHNSON: Yes.

         21                 CO-CHAIRPERSON WATKINS: Clarify this

         22  for me. This is the second time it has been raised.

         23  If someone on your detective squad retires, with all

         24  of this money that is coming into the Police budget

         25  and Law Enforcement budget, you don't get a

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            22

          1  DISTRICT ATTORNEYS SPECIAL NARCOTICS PROSECUTOR

          2  replacement? Any of your offices?

          3                 DISTRICT ATTORNEY JOHNSON: It has

          4  been years since we have gotten replacements in that

          5  particular area.

          6                 CO-CHAIRPERSON WATKINS: So what do

          7  you do?

          8                 DISTRICT ATTORNEY JOHNSON: What we do

          9  is we have to make do, and it impacts negatively on

         10  our investigatory work. Either that or it impacts

         11  negatively on the other portion of our budget as we

         12  increase our own detective investigators. So, we

         13  have to balance between the two and juggle between

         14  the two.

         15                 CO-CHAIRPERSON WATKINS: I am sorry

         16  for interrupting but --

         17                 DISTRICT ATTORNEY JOHNSON: No, I am

         18  glad you clarified that.

         19                 CO-CHAIRPERSON WATKINS: Okay.

         20                 DISTRICT ATTORNEY JOHNSON: In

         21  addition to that we have two capital requests; one,

         22  to upgrade our video-teleconferencing equipment,

         23  which is very instrumental in the arrest processing

         24  initiative, and the other is to upgrade and actually

         25  institute in some instances for the first time
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          2  automation for staff members, because not every

          3  staff member has yet received a computer, let alone

          4  to upgrade some of the older ones.

          5                 With respect to your questions, the

          6  drug initiative money that you have presented us has

          7  allowed us to increase felony prosecutions near

          8  schools by 57 percent. We obtained over 2,000

          9  convictions in school cases, a 93 percent conviction

         10  rate last year. We processed more eviction cases, an

         11  increase of 13 percent, 301 drug locations closed,

         12  and 111 of those locations were close to actions

         13  taken against the tenant, that is an increase of 33

         14  percent over 1997.

         15                 With respect to the arrest processing

         16  money that we are asking for annualization, we have

         17  funded to maintain the complaint room with the

         18  video-teleconferencing that is now in many ways

         19  suffering from wear and tear. We have expanded the

         20  hours of operation of our complaint room. We have

         21  increased the staff there by 30 percent. We have

         22  increased the use of supporting depositions and

         23  expedited affidavits, and we have established a

         24  paralegal arrest processing unit to use some lower

         25  salaried personnel to process cases in some of the
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          2  more minor incidents.

          3                 This has resulted in a 2.3 percent

          4  lower arrest to complaint sworn time in '98, or

          5  lower than '97, and in the month of December it was

          6  actually 11.9 percent lower.

          7                 And this is while our on-line

          8  arrests, this is something you just alluded to,

          9  increased 17 percent.

         10                 In addition to that, we have some of

         11  the same difficulty with respect to state and

         12  federal grants. There is a possibility of $600,000

         13  less. Much of it is up in the air still. One

         14  particular grant, we are in our third year of Stop

         15  Violence Against Women Grant, that has been reduced

         16  so that third year amount is half of the first year

         17  amount.

         18                 Some of the other grants we don't

         19  know if we are going to receive at all.

         20                 With respect to the gang unit, which

         21  I think is very, very important, not only to the

         22  people of Bronx County, but for the people of this

         23  City, we are proposing money which really the

         24  Correction Department has already received money in

         25  this area, and because of our connection to Rikers
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          2  Island, because Rikers Island is in the County of

          3  the Bronx, additionally the Bronx House of

          4  Detention, we have a connection to most of the

          5  Correction Department's inmates. And we want to use

          6  that to the best advantage of all of us, and we not

          7  only want to link with the Correction Department, we

          8  want to link with the Police Department, we want to

          9  share with the other District Attorneys, we want to

         10  link with the Board of Education's Division of

         11  School Safety to get information about students in

         12  schools, and we propose a $373,000 proposal to you

         13  to accomplish this. And as I have indicated, it

         14  really would benefit, because the inmates on Rikers

         15  Island, which is the largest facility, are not only

         16  Bronx residents. They are going back, they are

         17  coming from all five counties, and what information

         18  we and the Correction Department can gather there

         19  will be beneficial to everyone in the City.

         20                 In this proposal we have included

         21  community outreach, we have included vertical

         22  prosecution in our county of gangs and it would also

         23  mean greater safety to the Correction Officers which

         24  is very, very important to us.

         25                 So, you know, contraband is entering
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          2  these facilities, the narcotics contraband is bad

          3  enough, but there are weapons going in there that

          4  are a threat to the Correction Officers and to other

          5  inmates. In fact it probably will cut down on civil

          6  suits that the City is encountering because of

          7  inmates being injured on Rikers Island.

          8                 So, that is a new initiative that we

          9  have come to you with for the first time this year,

         10  but we are really asking for your consideration of

         11  that, because of the obvious benefits in many, many

         12  ways to the entire City.

         13                 I am going to leave Administrative

         14  Assistant Tony Shepis, Anthony Shepis, and my

         15  Administrative Chief, Joan Pellitiere here to

         16  address any additional questions you may have.

         17                 Thank you for your indulgence.

         18                 CO-CHAIRPERSON WATKINS: Thank you

         19  very much. And between your last presentation and

         20  this very fat book, I think we certainly have a

         21  great deal of information about what you are doing

         22  and what you are requesting.

         23                 DISTRICT ATTORNEY JOHNSON: Thank you.

         24                 CO-CHAIRPERSON WATKINS: Mr.

         25  Morgenthau. Who is next?
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          2                 DISTRICT ATTORNEY MORGENTHAU: I am

          3  next.

          4                 CO-CHAIRPERSON WATKINS: All right.

          5                 DISTRICT ATTORNEY MORGENTHAU: Thank

          6  you.

          7                 I want to start out by pointing out

          8  that arrests in Manhattan are up 30 percent since

          9  1993. Felony narcotic indictments are up by 40

         10  percent, and misdemeanor narcotic prosecutions are

         11  up by 80 percent. And as you pointed out, you have

         12  got to have people to prosecute those cases, obtain

         13  convictions where people are guilty and that takes

         14  resources.

         15                 So, we have asked for $787,000 to

         16  enhance the narcotics prosecution's ability of the

         17  Manhattan DA's office.

         18                 I also want to mention that in 1998,

         19  82,000 City jobs were added in the entire City, and

         20  94 percent of the payroll increase was in Manhattan.

         21  For every dollar in taxes collected in Manhattan,

         22  two-thirds is spent in other boroughs, so the City

         23  has a major interest in seeing that there is an

         24  environment in Manhattan which will lead to

         25  employment growth and to increase taxes for the
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          2  City. Two-thirds of every dollar collected in

          3  Manhattan are spent in other boroughs.

          4                 Now, one of the areas that we are

          5  asking for is for a building repair and maintenance

          6  investigation unit. We have found widespread fraud

          7  in the maintenance and repair of both residential

          8  and commercial buildings. Widespread corruption and

          9  fraud in the repair and maintenance of both

         10  residential and commercial buildings. And if we want

         11  to keep people living and working in Manhattan we

         12  have to address that problem in a major way and it

         13  takes not only Assistant District Attorneys, but it

         14  has been reported that if detective investigators of

         15  the Police Department are not available, it means

         16  investigators on our own staff.

         17                 We want to expand our Domestic

         18  Violence Unit. We want to be able to have people on

         19  24-hour call, so that when there is domestic

         20  violence and it is almost always against women, that

         21  we can get somebody on the scene immediately,

         22  because those are difficult cases to prepare, it is

         23  difficult to protect the victim, and we want to be

         24  able to have an enlarged unit which can deal with

         25  that on a prompt and effective way.

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            29

          1  DISTRICT ATTORNEYS SPECIAL NARCOTICS PROSECUTOR

          2                 On the northern Manhattan office,

          3  which is in the State Office Building, and has been

          4  in operation since 1991, has never gotten a dollar

          5  of support from the City. We put that in our budget

          6  every year, in our budget requests to the City every

          7  year, and every year it is ignored. And I would like

          8  to make that a priority, that is a very important

          9  program for not only the Manhattan DA's office, but

         10  the northern Manhattan community which it serves.

         11  Domestic violence cases, a whole host of problems,

         12  narcotics problems, that people in the Northern

         13  Manhattan community have and they look to that

         14  office to help them and we have asked for $440,000

         15  to support that unit.

         16                 I want to come to something that

         17  affects all of the District Attorneys, and that is

         18  that there is $4 million in Corporation Counsel's

         19  budget for merit increases. Their starting salaries

         20  are already $2,500 a year higher than the Manhattan

         21  DA's office and I suspect of all of the DA's

         22  offices. There is not a dime in our budget for merit

         23  increases. And I am very happy to see the

         24  Corporation Counsel get that additional money, but I

         25  think the DAs' offices should get an equivalent
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          2  amount.

          3                 CO-CHAIRPERSON WATKINS: Mr.

          4  Morgenthau, how much did you say was in the budget

          5  for the Corp Counsel?

          6                 DISTRICT ATTORNEY MORGENTHAU:

          7  Four-million dollars. That comes out to $5,800 per

          8  Assistant Corporation Counsel, and I think they

          9  deserve that, but we also need that.

         10                 We have always had a problem about

         11  losing people to the private sector, but now we are

         12  having a very serious problem losing people to other

         13  government agencies.

         14                 I mean, I had a Deputy Bureau Chief

         15  go to another government agency at a 50 percent

         16  increase in salary. We regularly lose people to the

         17  United States Attorneys' Office, at a 20 to 25

         18  percent increase in salary.

         19                 People are coming to work for us with

         20  loans of over $100,000, and so the salary is

         21  important, and we don't want to have to say to

         22  people, or have them say to us, look, I owe so much

         23  money I can't afford to come to you to work, I have

         24  to come to work for somebody else. So, I think that

         25  is a very important part of our program.
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          2                 CO-CHAIRPERSON WATKINS: Let me ask

          3  you another question.

          4                 DISTRICT ATTORNEY MORGENTHAU: Yes.

          5                 CO-CHAIRPERSON WATKINS: Because I am

          6  looking at your budget proposal summary, that the $3

          7  million and change --

          8                 DISTRICT ATTORNEY MORGENTHAU: Right.

          9                 CO-CHAIRPERSON WATKINS: Is that

         10  representing the Manhattan DA's office only?

         11                 DISTRICT ATTORNEY MORGENTHAU: It

         12  does. It does. That is the same amount of money the

         13  Assistant Corporation Counsel is getting.

         14                 We also want to set up a DNA Unit. At

         15  the present time there are 12,000 rape kits with the

         16  Medical Examiner and the Police Department, and this

         17  is potential DNA material of rape victims.

         18                 The Medical Examiner has only

         19  processed about 600 of those. It is time-consuming

         20  and expensive. And what we want to do is to work

         21  with the medical examiner and the Police Department

         22  to prioritize those DNA tests so we can try to pick

         23  out the ones that are most productive and most

         24  liable to lead to both arrests and exoneration.

         25                 I mean, a lot of people, this is
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          2  something that people tend to forget, a lot of

          3  people who are suspects and actually indicted in

          4  rape cases are exonerated by DNA, so it is a very --

          5  and murder cases, I mean I think you all saw

          6  somebody on death row in Illinois has just been

          7  exonerated by DNA. And I think we have got to

          8  maximize the use of DNA, and that was what this

          9  unit, we have two -- I mean, it is great technique

         10  but it is still a sophisticated one, but what you

         11  need is experienced people who know how to evaluate

         12  this material, and I think everybody would benefit

         13  by this.

         14                 And then there is one final thing. We

         15  have asked for $100,000 for a bail bond collection

         16  unit, and we are guaranteeing you that we will

         17  collect at least $1 million a year with that money.

         18                 I think it is important. These are

         19  people who posted bail and then have absconded and

         20  this would be a collection unit, a very small

         21  investment would yield a significant -- and also you

         22  don't want people who have jumped bail out there on

         23  the street.

         24                 So, those are the basic things. We

         25  have reported to you what we have done with the
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          2  Speaker's Initiative, it has been very important in

          3  the fight against narcotics. It is all written out,

          4  I don't want to take up your time, but it is an

          5  important part of our program. I am prepared to

          6  answer any questions that you may have.

          7                 CO-CHAIRPERSON WATKINS: Thank you. We

          8  are going to ask Mr. Tischman from Brooklyn, and

          9  then maybe collectively there are a couple of

         10  questions --

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: There is the

         12  Narcotics Prosecutor here too.

         13                 CO-CHAIRPERSON WATKINS:-- After Ms.

         14  Brennan. I would like to do all the DAs first, and

         15  then -- I haven't forgotten you.

         16                 MR. TISCHMAN: Thank you very much,

         17  Madame Chairperson. My name is Al Tischman, I am

         18  Chief Assistant for the Kings County District

         19  Attorney's Office. I am here on behalf of District

         20  Attorney Hynes.

         21                 We have submitted our presentation,

         22  which is essentially what we submitted in the

         23  Preliminary Budget, in which we ask the Council's

         24  assistance for additional money for Criminal Court

         25  staffing. As our other colleagues we have seen a
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          2  huge increase in the number of arrests,

          3  approximately a 50 percent increase in our

          4  misdemeanor arrests and that is an overwhelming

          5  amount of work for the Criminal Courts.

          6                 We have asked for funding for our

          7  Track Program. DA Murphy referred to it. We have

          8  started a truancy unit working in conjunction with

          9  the New York City Police Department and the Board of

         10  Education. When we have completed our efforts, we

         11  believe we will have seven truancy centers staffed

         12  by Assistant DAs and social workers in which we

         13  believe are following the models done in other

         14  cities. We can prevent violence done to children and

         15  violence done by children.

         16                 And in the cities where it has been

         17  done and done successfully, they have seen a marked

         18  reduction in daytime criminal activity by children.

         19                 So we are very excited about that and

         20  we have asked for funding for that program. We have

         21  asked for money to expand our drug treatment

         22  alternative to prison. District Attorney Hynes has

         23  proven we believe, and as indicated all over the

         24  state, that money for DTAP not only saves lives but

         25  makes economic sense. It costs half the money to
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          2  take a person to put them through a residential

          3  treatment program and find them a job at the end and

          4  turn them into productive taxpayers as opposed to

          5  putting them in upstate jail.

          6                 We have asked for additional funding

          7  for our Gang Unit, for our Crimes Against Children

          8  Unit, and we have asked before and continue to ask

          9  again for additional monies to make up the loss in

         10  OTPS funding that we have received over the years.

         11                 We join District Attorney Morgenthau

         12  in requesting money for merit increases for

         13  Assistant District Attorneys. We clearly believe

         14  that civil cases that the City handles are extremely

         15  important to the future of this City, however the

         16  criminal cases we all know are also extremely

         17  important to our City's well-being.

         18                 In reporting what we have done with

         19  the Council's money for our Narcotics Initiative, we

         20  thank the Council for its efforts, we would ask the

         21  Council to redouble their efforts this year again.

         22  In this past year we were able to increase our

         23  search warrant activity by 36 percent. We have

         24  developed new programs, our model block program,

         25  working in conjunction with the New York City Police
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          2  Department. We identify particular blocks and focus

          3  on the drug activity in that block, and working with

          4  the community residents work on a block by block

          5  basis.

          6                 In addition, we have gone even down

          7  to a lower level, we will work with precinct

          8  commanders, where particular buildings have been

          9  targeted and working with the Narcotics Unit, and

         10  our Specialized Narcotics Bureau, we have been very

         11  successful in taking out operations in particular

         12  buildings.

         13                 In addition, we have been focusing on

         14  narcotics activity among gang members and we have a

         15  number of high level investigations that have been

         16  supported by the Narcotics Initiative money and we

         17  are very thankful for it.

         18                 In response to your question about

         19  pending grant money, I join our colleagues in saying

         20  to you that we have a number of grants that are

         21  pending. It is very, very difficult to plan

         22  operations based on what you may or may not get, so

         23  we always are walking on egg shells in terms of our

         24  budgetary process to consider what is going to be in

         25  next year's budget.
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          2                 I am available for any questions.

          3  Thank you very much.

          4                 CO-CHAIRPERSON WATKINS: Thank you,

          5  Mr. Tischman.

          6                 Now, Ms. Brennan.

          7                 MS. BRENNAN: Thank you, Chair

          8  Watkins. And thank you for the opportunity to

          9  present our request for new funding for Fiscal Year

         10  2000.

         11                 As I informed the Council in March,

         12  our primary budgeting requests fall into three

         13  categories. Number one, for enhanced investigation

         14  to target more mid- and high-level narcotics

         15  investigations.

         16                 Secondly, new funding for our

         17  Alternative Sentencing Bureau.

         18                 And then, finally, we would ask to

         19  have the Speaker's Drug Initiative grant be renewed

         20  and baselined into our budget. That money is

         21  absolutely critical to our operations.

         22                 I believe we are able to do

         23  tremendous work with it this year, and I will

         24  outline some of that to you.

         25                 Primarily we used it for enhancement
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          2  investigations, both for equipment, for our

          3  investigations unit, for tape duplicators and

          4  sophisticated technology that we use in our

          5  investigations.

          6                 In addition, we used it for personnel

          7  for our investigations. And the kind of

          8  investigations I am talking about are outlined in

          9  the annual report which we have distributed, but a

         10  good example of that is our Caliman investigation.

         11                 CO-CHAIRPERSON WATKINS: What?

         12                 MS. BRENNAN: Our Caliman, Cali and in

         13  Cali, Columbia, Caliman investigation, which was an

         14  investigation into a very high level narcotics

         15  organization directed out of Columbia, operating

         16  here in New York, in Miami, in Texas and in

         17  Connecticut, and with five branches in four of the

         18  five boroughs here in the City.

         19                 In connection with that investigation

         20  we learned that the organization was importing

         21  11,000 pounds of cocaine into the country monthly.

         22                 At the conclusion of that

         23  investigation, we arrested 34 people and seized

         24  1,000 pounds of cocaine. And we found connections in

         25  four of the five counties here in the City.
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          2                 That is the kind of investigation

          3  that we used the Speaker's Initiative funds for.

          4                 During the past year we have seen

          5  tremendous success of street level narcotics

          6  operations. And as the Police Department has had

          7  that kind of success what we have seen is those

          8  narcotics operations moving indoors, requiring a lot

          9  more investigation on our part, and a lot more

         10  sophistication on our part.

         11                 During the past year, as a result we

         12  have run approximately 200 multi-county

         13  investigations, and those investigations

         14  successfully targeted international narcotics

         15  traffickers, mid-level drug operators running across

         16  county lines, as well as neighborhood drug dealers.

         17                 And as I am sure you know, our office

         18  does specialize in complex narcotics investigations,

         19  and New York being one of these drug center really

         20  of the world, in terms of the importation of

         21  narcotics, we have a lot of work here. And during

         22  1998 we supervised 193 wiretap investigations --

         23  well, 193 new wiretap orders, new applications for

         24  taps on phones or other communication devices, and

         25  just to put that in perspective, that was 150

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            40

          1  DISTRICT ATTORNEYS SPECIAL NARCOTICS PROSECUTOR

          2  percent increase over what we had done just two

          3  years ago in 1996.

          4                 And to show you the breath of the

          5  investigations that we are doing, it is not simply

          6  in our Investigations Bureau where we are running

          7  those kinds of investigations. In our Trial Bureaus

          8  last year we had 47 wiretaps going, compared to the

          9  previous year when we had had only eight.

         10                 So, as you can see, as narcotics

         11  activity is being cleaned up off the street and

         12  moving indoors, we are being stretched in terms of

         13  our resources, what we have to do in order to really

         14  cut off the head of the hydra, really run the

         15  narcotics organizations out of the City. And that is

         16  what we have been attempting to do this past year.

         17                 The wiretaps we have found are really

         18  the most effective method that we have against the

         19  narcotics, complex narcotics organizations, the very

         20  sophisticated narcotics organizations, the ones we

         21  are up against. And this falls in line with

         22  something that Mr. Morgenthau and the other DAs have

         23  stated, what we have also found is we need these

         24  senior experienced assistants, Assistant District

         25  Attorneys working on those cases, and we are losing
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          2  those assistants left and right.

          3                 What happens is, we bring them in, we

          4  train them, we get them up to speed and just when

          5  they are right there when they can be of real

          6  benefit in our investigations, they are scooped up

          7  by frequently some other agency or a U.S. Attorney's

          8  Office. It is not just that they are going out into

          9  private practice, we really aren't turning around

         10  and seeing them on the other side of the courtroom.

         11  Where we are seeing them in other agencies and they

         12  are getting all of that training really at our

         13  expense, and we really need to be able to hang on to

         14  those senior experienced attorneys.

         15                 Those are the only attorneys who can

         16  really handle this kind of investigation and we are

         17  doing more and more of it.

         18                 In connection with our investigation

         19  requests, we are asking for translators, translators

         20  to actually be attached to our staff.

         21                 What we are seeing with our wiretap

         22  investigations is that most of the intercepted

         23  conversations are in foreign languages and most

         24  frequently Spanish, and during the course of not

         25  only during the course of the investigation, but
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          2  after the investigation, we need to have the

          3  conversations translated for grand jury and court

          4  presentations.

          5                 What we do now is we use police

          6  officers or agents, or there are occasions -- the

          7  DEA has translators who are attached to their staff

          8  who provide this kind of service.

          9                 But the DEA, the Drug Enforcement

         10  Agency is increasingly hard-pressed to provide this

         11  service and it can really jeopardize an

         12  investigation to have to hire an outside translator

         13  during the course of an ongoing investigation in

         14  order to provide that translation service. It is

         15  something that we simply can't do.

         16                 Our only alternative is to bring in

         17  police officers or agents off the streets, not doing

         18  really what they do best, working out there on

         19  enforcement, bring them in to do the translation.

         20                 And we feel that this function would

         21  best be served by having translators actually on our

         22  staff, not to do the translation of the wiretap

         23  during the course of the wiretap, but to do the

         24  translations that we have to do in preparation for

         25  court.
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          2                 During the course of the wiretap you

          3  actually need an investigator listening in so that

          4  he can tell other investigators what to do, what is

          5  going on, the alert to security concerns, the alert

          6  to problems that may develop during the course of

          7  the investigation.

          8                 However, we need those transcripts

          9  done for our grand juries for a trial and the last

         10  thing we want to do is bring in a police officer off

         11  the street to be doing that kind of translation,

         12  sitting in our office doing that. We could really

         13  use translators.

         14                 CO-CHAIRPERSON WATKINS: Let me ask

         15  you this: Do you need two different types of

         16  translators or are you saying that you could have

         17  additional translators who could do, assert both

         18  functions, the translations as they are listening to

         19  the wiretap, and a person who can do that, as well

         20  as one who can do the translations to prepare for

         21  court appearances?

         22                 MS. BRENNAN: No, we are really

         23  talking about the translator, not the one during the

         24  course of the wiretap. Because any agency that we

         25  work with, be it the Police Department, Drug

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            44

          1  DISTRICT ATTORNEYS SPECIAL NARCOTICS PROSECUTOR

          2  Enforcement Agency, whatever, they have their own

          3  system set up, their own systems in place. They

          4  frequently want their own personnel staffing the

          5  ongoing wiretape for very good reasons, but it is on

          6  the back end. We have literally thousands of hours

          7  of conversations, which must be transcribed. These

          8  wiretap investigations that I am talking about go to

          9  grand jury, and the way we present our grand jury

         10  cases, those conversations must be translated into

         11  English. The more wiretaps we run, the more arrests

         12  we bring, the more strain it puts on anybody who is

         13  going to be doing this translation job, and on the

         14  back end, that is where we need the resource.

         15                 I wouldn't tamper with what the

         16  various agencies that we work with have in place in

         17  order to staff their ongoing wires. The concerns are

         18  too sensitive.

         19                 CO-CHAIRPERSON WATKINS: What kinds of

         20  background would you need in a person to do this

         21  sort of thing?

         22                 MS. BRENNAN: For translators?

         23                 CO-CHAIRPERSON WATKINS: Yes.

         24                 MS. BRENNAN: We would look for

         25  someone basically who had already been screened by
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          2  the DEA, the FBI, one of the other agencies that we

          3  work with, hire them onto our staff to actually do

          4  this kind of work for us. And it is not simply the

          5  wiretaps that I am talking about, it is the

          6  debriefing of confidential informants.

          7                 CO-CHAIRPERSON WATKINS: I understand.

          8                 MS. BRENNAN: Everything else they

          9  have that is attached to an investigation, and so

         10  much of it is in Spanish now.

         11                 That is one thing that we are looking

         12  for. We are also looking for resources to develop a

         13  database. During the course of our sophisticated

         14  investigations we capture a lot of information, a

         15  lot of data, and unless we have a way of accessing

         16  and checking for crossovers, it just sits there and

         17  does little good for anyone.

         18                 We are looking for the funding to

         19  develop a database to capture, classify, and archive

         20  this intelligence on drug organizations, which would

         21  be useful not only in our own future investigations

         22  or past investigations, but to the other District

         23  Attorneys' Offices and other law enforcement

         24  agencies.

         25                 Those are the resources we are
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          2  looking for basically to fight the supply of

          3  narcotics. And keep in mind that New York really is

          4  one of the importation and distribution capitals of

          5  the country.

          6                 Secondly, we are requesting funding

          7  for our Alternative to Incarceration Bureau. Our

          8  office has long been committed to developing

          9  alternatives to incarceration for the appropriate

         10  person. And just a cautionary note here, what we

         11  have seen in our 25 years of experience in my office

         12  is that most drug dealers are in it for the money.

         13  They are not in it because they are addicted to

         14  narcotics.

         15                 However, there is that group who are

         16  in it because they are addicted and that is the

         17  group who should be diverted to treatment and should

         18  be treated in some other manner. And we have only

         19  two grants that fund the five diversion programs

         20  that we currently run. We run programs for predicate

         21  felons, pregnant defendants, women with dependent

         22  children, defendants with AIDS and for teenagers.

         23  And those programs do divert hundreds every year.

         24                 What we are looking for is increased

         25  funding so that we may be able to keep up this at
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          2  the same level that we are currently going. We also

          3  initiated a new program this year, our own version

          4  of the Drug Court, the Manhattan Treatment Court,

          5  and we are looking for more funds for that.

          6                 The other thing that we have seen is

          7  with the National Push Towards Welfare Reform, our

          8  defendants who would ordinarily just be processed

          9  regularly for Medicaid or for some means of funding

         10  their treatment, we now have to process a whole lot

         11  more paperwork for them in order to obtain funding

         12  for their treatment, and it puts a lot of strain on

         13  an already stretched out staff. So we are looking

         14  for additional funding for that and for a program

         15  which we would like to run for teenagers and young

         16  adults.

         17                 What we have seen is that teenagers

         18  and young adults are frequently used at the very

         19  lowest level of drug organizations, as runners and

         20  steerers. And while these people may not yet have an

         21  addiction problem, they are certainly at risk for an

         22  addiction problem and they are certainly at risk for

         23  developing a life of criminal activity.

         24                 That is a group which we don't have a

         25  program to capture and we would like to. We think
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          2  that would be a group that would be very beneficial

          3  to divert at this time, and we are looking for funds

          4  in order to develop a program just for this group

          5  who is not yet addicted but certainly at risk and

          6  needs a comprehensive group -- they need high school

          7  diplomas, they need some kind of residential

          8  treatment, they need a whole host of things and we

          9  just don't have any program to fit them into now.

         10                 So, in addition, as I say, we really

         11  need the Speaker's Initiative funds to be renewed

         12  for this year. It was absolutely critical to us last

         13  year and it becomes more critical as we have to push

         14  harder and harder to get to the very sophisticated

         15  narcotics organizations that we are seeing.

         16                 So, in conclusion I would like to

         17  thank the Council for its tremendous support, and I

         18  appreciate your continued support to our office in

         19  this fight that we are all up against, and I welcome

         20  any questions that you might have.

         21                 CO-CHAIRPERSON WATKINS: We appreciate

         22  the work that all of you do. One of the things that

         23  is of concern is this new agreement which you, the

         24  DAs that is, may or may not have signed onto, I

         25  believe DA Brown mentioned it, and that has to do
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          2  with the arrest processing and case processing, and

          3  the change in the manner in which the money,

          4  additional funds, are supposed to be granted to you.

          5                 It is our understanding that the

          6  Criminal Justice Coordinator, for Fiscal 2000, is

          7  making an agreement with each of you that you are

          8  going to get X amount of dollars at the front end

          9  but the rest of the money is to come based on some

         10  benchmark or performance level; do I have a general

         11  understanding?

         12                 MR. LHEIR: That's correct.

         13                 CO-CHAIRPERSON WATKINS: Well, number

         14  one, what is your opinion of this? Do you feel that

         15  this is a satisfactory method, and do you feel it is

         16  going to give you sufficient leeway to actually meet

         17  these benchmarks? Will you be able to do your job or

         18  not?

         19                 DISTRICT ATTORNEY MORGENTHAU: I mean,

         20  you know, we would prefer to have this -- I think we

         21  have all demonstrated that we are meeting the

         22  guidelines and that we have reduced arrest to

         23  arraignment time and it is very difficult to be more

         24  than halfway, right now three-quarters of the way

         25  through the budget year and still not have gotten
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          2  the money, because you make the investment in staff

          3  and you pay them and you don't know whether you are

          4  going to get reimbursed. Now it is May and the

          5  Fiscal Year ends June 30th and there is still a

          6  substantial amount of money for this fiscal year

          7  that we never received, so that makes it difficult

          8  for all of us.

          9                 CO-CHAIRPERSON WATKINS: In other

         10  words, with about five weeks more to go in Fiscal

         11  '99, you still don't know what, if any, monies you

         12  are going to get?

         13                 DISTRICT ATTORNEY MORGENTHAU: Well,

         14  we have been promised but he proof of the pudding is

         15  in the eating and --

         16                 CO-CHAIRPERSON WATKINS: And you are

         17  not tasting it yet.

         18                 DISTRICT ATTORNEY MORGENTHAU: We know

         19  what we have been promised but we haven't received

         20  it. And that makes it very difficult because we

         21  can't say to people on our staff, you know, don't

         22  worry, we are going to pay you next month, you have

         23  to pay them on a regular basis.

         24                 CO-CHAIRPERSON WATKINS: That sounds

         25  like the state.
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          2                 Have you made agreements, have any or

          3  all of you signed agreements for Fiscal 2000?

          4                 DISTRICT ATTORNEY MORGENTHAU: No, not

          5  yet. We are hopeful.

          6                 MR. SHEPIS: In the Bronx we have sent

          7  a letter, but we have not yet received, as you

          8  indicated, the standards by which we will be judged

          9  to complete what they want us to do.

         10                 CO-CHAIRPERSON WATKINS: But you sent

         11  a letter?

         12                 MR. SHEPIS: Yes, the District

         13  Attorney signed a letter to the Criminal Justice

         14  Coordinator.

         15                 CO-CHAIRPERSON WATKINS: We would very

         16  much appreciate getting a copy of that, if District

         17  Attorney Johnson will share it with us, because we

         18  do have some concerns about how you are going to be

         19  able to do what you're charged with doing with this

         20  kind of a financial agreement, so we would

         21  appreciate that.

         22                 MR. SHEPIS: Certainly.

         23                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: In Queens we

         24  sent a letter and we made a counter offer. We have

         25  not signed any documents.
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          2                 MR. LHEIR: In Richmond we have

          3  received a letter and signed it, but it is under an

          4  understanding that it is a letter that can change,

          5  because a lot of the ways that we are going to

          6  figure on how we are to obtain the money, are still

          7  in the state of flux. Because a lot of it depends

          8  upon Police Department figures that are given to

          9  them that we disagree with.

         10                 The Police Department always says

         11  that they are ready to come to the complaint room in

         12  two hours. Well, that is not true in most cases, so

         13  we are working back and forth, but we basically

         14  signed a letter saying if we could get a formula

         15  set, we will look for and we will try to meet the

         16  goals and get the money that we need.

         17                 DISTRICT ATTORNEY MORGENTHAU: We have

         18  not -- Manhattan has not signed any.

         19                 CO-CHAIRPERSON WATKINS: Okay.

         20                 Anything that you do have that you

         21  can share with us we would appreciate because

         22  obviously we need whatever ammunition we can get for

         23  whatever good it will do us collectively to try to

         24  impress upon the powers that be that this may not be

         25  the best way to achieve the level of productivity
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          2  that is being sought.

          3                 I know that Councilman Reed has some

          4  questions.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Thank you,

          6  Madame Chair, and our guests, good afternoon,

          7  approaching this evening. I will try to be brief but

          8  a lot of your testimony was provocative enough to

          9  generate some questions even at this late hour.

         10                 Mr. Morgenthau, you testified about

         11  domestic violence as a major issue that you are

         12  trying to address and your testimony predicted one

         13  of my questions so you haven't headlined how many

         14  people use the upper Manhattan office, so I didn't

         15  have to ask that, thank you.

         16                 And I notice the two-thirds of the

         17  domestic violence cases are in the part of where I

         18  represent. Are you finding -- I think obviously we

         19  can see a correlation between poverty and other

         20  dynamics in people's lives as it relates to domestic

         21  violence. In your office is it as a relationship to

         22  the community knows that you were there that you are

         23  seeing an increase that it is therefore being

         24  reported? Or is this because the police have had to

         25  be more aggressive and are now mandated to report

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            54

          1  DISTRICT ATTORNEYS SPECIAL NARCOTICS PROSECUTOR

          2  domestic violence as you are seeing this increase?

          3                 DISTRICT ATTORNEY MORGENTHAU: It is

          4  almost hard to answer a question like that. I think

          5  it is probably both. I think the police are making

          6  more arrests and I think our presence there is

          7  bringing more complainants and I think it is --

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: I guess part of

          9  my question is, are people coming into your office

         10  to talk about their own personal issues of domestic

         11  violence before they even get to -- before there is

         12  an incident; is that what I am seeing your report

         13  saying?

         14                 DISTRICT ATTORNEY MORGENTHAU: That is

         15  true. We are seeing that, but there are also an

         16  increase in police arrests. And of course, now that

         17  they are mandated, you have to be very careful, I

         18  mean to be sure you are not stepping into a custody

         19  fight you have to be very careful it is truly a case

         20  of violence, so it requires more vigilance on our

         21  part.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: In part of your

         23  testimony you also said that overwhelmingly the

         24  people who are victims or report domestic violence

         25  are women, but the statistics unfortunately in the
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          2  lesbian and gay community are probably higher for

          3  domestic violence on some levels than they are in

          4  the general population.

          5                 In either of your offices are you

          6  seeing an increase or a decrease or is there some

          7  sensitivity or what part of your -- are there

          8  anybody in your office, I guess I should say, who

          9  specializes in domestic violence issues as they

         10  affect the lesbian and gay community -- as it

         11  relates to the lesbian and gay community?

         12                 DISTRICT ATTORNEY MORGENTHAU: We have

         13  a coordinator that works with the gay and lesbian

         14  community, and certainly there is a substantial

         15  problem in that community.

         16                 Again, I just find it very difficult

         17  to say it is going up. All I can tell you is it is a

         18  real problem.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: You have one

         20  investigator working with that population, but are

         21  all of your investigators aware, is this just in the

         22  downtown office? Is this uptown? That is what I am

         23  trying to understand.

         24                 DISTRICT ATTORNEY MORGENTHAU: We have

         25  a coordinator that meets with the organizations, but
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          2  we have 20 assistants who handle domestic violence

          3  cases and we hope --

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: So, if a gay

          5  couple, if a gay man comes in and is discussing this

          6  issue with one of your investigators, does that

          7  investigator say, well, wait a minute I have to give

          8  this over to this special person?

          9                 DISTRICT ATTORNEY MORGENTHAU: No. The

         10  special person is somebody that one of the groups

         11  can call and say we have somebody assigned to look

         12  at this case. I mean, the Coordinator does not

         13  personally investigate the case, the Coordinator is

         14  somebody to make sure the case doesn't fall into a

         15  gap where nobody is looking at it.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: On a different

         17  subject, and I guess it is addressed to all of you,

         18  although perhaps Ms. Brennan, since you are the

         19  Special Narcotics Prosecutor, we have seen a vast

         20  increase in the arrest and prosecution of people on

         21  minor marijuana offenses, there have been many

         22  articles in the paper about how people have been

         23  picked up for smoking on the street, et cetera. Do

         24  we see this as a genuine deterrent to narcotics

         25  problems as a whole or is this excessive or do we
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          2  really need to be prosecuted, jamming the courts up

          3  with these huge number of cases?

          4                 MS. BRENNAN: Well, our jurisdiction,

          5  our Office's jurisdiction is over felony narcotics

          6  offenses, we don't actually have jurisdiction over

          7  marijuana.

          8                 But let me just tell you that based

          9  on materials that I have seen and based on our

         10  experience, we do see marijuana, it is called a

         11  gateway drug, particularly for young people, that

         12  there is a very high incidence of those who later go

         13  on to more serious addictions who have started out

         14  with marijuana as their gateway drug, their

         15  beginning drug.

         16                 But with respect to those kinds of

         17  arrests, we don't prosecute those cases, we only

         18  have jurisdiction over the felony narcotics cases,

         19  so I will defer to somebody else to address that

         20  issue.

         21                 DISTRICT ATTORNEY MORGENTHAU: The

         22  marijuana arrests are pretty generally focused on,

         23  you know, parks and public places where there is

         24  community protest about the open use of drugs, and

         25  so that is where the focus is, like Washington
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          2  Square Park, as an example, where people are angry

          3  about the open sale and use of marijuana. There is I

          4  would say virtually no prosecution of marijuana

          5  indoors.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Indoors?

          7                 DISTRICT ATTORNEY MORGENTHAU: Yes.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: I mean, I don't

          9  remember what the numbers were but they were

         10  startling to me, the number of arrests that are

         11  being made, and even if it was 50,000, 50 percent of

         12  them, that is 4,000, 4,500 arrests in Manhattan for

         13  smoking marijuana on the streets. You are telling me

         14  they are all taking place in the parks?

         15                 DISTRICT ATTORNEY MORGENTHAU: Or on

         16  street corners. I am saying they are not indoors.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: I understand

         18  that.

         19                 So, my question was, do you think

         20  that that is a good use of our money, the

         21  prosecution of those cases? You are discussing a

         22  serious problem that you have with your budget in

         23  terms of these larger issues and it was very

         24  compelling. We have then also seen enormous increase

         25  in this arrest, type of arrest. Now I am not here to
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          2  condone smoking marijuana on the street, I am just

          3  trying to understand in the era of limited

          4  resources, are we really accomplishing something in

          5  the war against narcotics by spending that amount of

          6  money prosecuting those cases?

          7                 DISTRICT ATTORNEY MORGENTHAU: Let me

          8  start over.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: I can't hear

         10  you, sir.

         11                 DISTRICT ATTORNEY MORGENTHAU: We

         12  don't make the determination as to who the police

         13  arrest. We don't make that determination. But the

         14  arrest and marijuana cases are, I would say largely

         15  driven by community demands that people be

         16  prosecuted for selling and smoking marijuana in

         17  public places.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: You have

         19  jurisdiction over how much energy we put into

         20  prosecuting those, don't you?

         21                 DISTRICT ATTORNEY MORGENTHAU: Well,

         22  if a case comes in we got to deal with it, but in

         23  overall terms, it is a very small amount of

         24  resources.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Thank you.
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          2                 CO-CHAIRPERSON WATKINS: Council

          3  Member Michels.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Yes.

          5  Chairlady, thank you.

          6                 It has been a long day for all of us.

          7  The Police Commissioner in his statement said that

          8  the new initiative at the Manhattan District

          9  Attorney's Office is the use of on-line signature

         10  pens. I have never heard about that yet. I guess

         11  that is what the police officers or maybe in some

         12  cases a complaining witness will actually sign, make

         13  a signature on line, I guess on the computer and

         14  that would be avoiding the necessity of having to

         15  come down to the office downtown in Criminal Court?

         16                 How does that work?

         17                 DISTRICT ATTORNEY MORGENTHAU: That is

         18  something that we have been working on.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: I know. He

         20  said that that has been saving them a lot of money

         21  on overtime.

         22                 DISTRICT ATTORNEY MORGENTHAU: Yes. In

         23  other words, when we get the arrest report on line

         24  and we draft the complaint and it is sent back to

         25  the precinct and then signed on line and then
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          2  returned.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: And that is

          4  considered, that signature is considered good?

          5                 DISTRICT ATTORNEY MORGENTHAU: Yes.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: And you are

          7  satisfied with that. Before that you would have to

          8  come down and sign and it saves you some time.

          9                 What about the other District

         10  Attorneys? Are they looking at that as well?

         11                 MR. LHEIR: We have a project that is

         12  almost up. We have been working with the Police

         13  Department, I guess it is four years now. It started

         14  with television, you know, the same as Manhattan, it

         15  has now evolved --

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: This is one

         17  step.

         18                 MR. LHEIR: Well, the television

         19  became too costly for the police to do, so now we

         20  are into doing computers and signature pads, and if

         21  I believe the Police Department, it should be about

         22  five months in the future that will be up and

         23  running.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: So this is in

         25  substitution of the video --
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          2                 MR. LHEIR: At least for us. We were

          3  the first county to have video-conferencing and

          4  video projections with the Police Department. Then

          5  as you remember a number of years ago they did not

          6  want to pay the vendor $10,000 to keep that up and

          7  running.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: I don't

          9  remember that. I will take your word for it.

         10                 MR. LHEIR: And so they took it out of

         11  Richmond County, they started it up in Manhattan, it

         12  has been very successful. In 1995, $250,000 was put

         13  from the Borough President's budget into the Police

         14  Department's budget to resurrect teleconferencing in

         15  Richmond County. It has never been done. At this

         16  point it would cost over a million something dollars

         17  to do that, so now we are into computers and

         18  signature pads which would fit within that $250,000.

         19  That should be up and running within the next six

         20  months, if their predictions are correct.

         21                 It is only four and a half years.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Mr.

         23  Morgenthau, is this substitution for video

         24  arraignment?

         25                 MR. LHEIR: For us it is, I don't know

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            63

          1  DISTRICT ATTORNEYS SPECIAL NARCOTICS PROSECUTOR

          2  about --

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Mr.

          4  Morgenthau I am asking.

          5                 DISTRICT ATTORNEY MORGENTHAU: I am

          6  sorry, I wasn't listening.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Is this using

          8  the on-line signature pad, is this a substitute for

          9  a procedure you have been following, or in addition

         10  to the procedure you have been following?

         11                 DISTRICT ATTORNEY MORGENTHAU: It is

         12  part of the procedure we have developed.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: But you are

         14  still using video-teleconferencing?

         15                 DISTRICT ATTORNEY MORGENTHAU: Oh,

         16  absolutely. It is based on that that a complaint is

         17  drafted and then --

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Yes, I am

         19  just trying to get a --

         20                 DISTRICT ATTORNEY MORGENTHAU: Based

         21  on that then you get a video signature. It is all

         22  part of the same thing.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Yes. I am

         24  just getting a different story here. They are doing

         25  it a little different.

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            64

          1  DISTRICT ATTORNEYS SPECIAL NARCOTICS PROSECUTOR

          2                 What about the other boroughs and the

          3  Special Narcotics Prosecutor?

          4                 MR. SHEPIS: In the Bronx we have used

          5  the signature pad, also the video-teleconferencing

          6  system and with the PC system, and this cuts down on

          7  the need to fax complaints back and forth to police

          8  officers in precincts, and it has worked very

          9  successfully. It is part of what District Attorney

         10  Johnson has asked for in his budget requests to the

         11  Council, our video-teleconferencing system, which

         12  you gave us five years ago, is now antiquated and we

         13  are looking to upgrade it so we can continue to

         14  process complaints.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Nothing lasts

         16  forever.

         17                 MR. SHEPIS: You are right. But the

         18  signature pads work very, very well and it is

         19  something that has saved time both for the police

         20  and for us.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Is Brooklyn

         22  doing it now too?

         23                 MR. TISCHMAN: We are using a

         24  different system. We have a local area processing

         25  system that uses the phone. Our Assistant District
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          2  Attorney speaks to the --

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: New item of

          4  --

          5                 MR. TISCHMAN: We use that invention

          6  by Alexander Bell. We use the phone, we have a

          7  conversation with an Assistant District Attorney, we

          8  make the Assistant District Attorney the deponent so

          9  we cut the officer loose from the process right

         10  then. The complaint is then drafted, the Assistant

         11  District Attorney signs the complaint and we find

         12  that to be very quick system.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Let me ask

         14  you another question.  I am sitting here and

         15  listening and very annoyed at the fact that the

         16  Corporation Counsel is getting an increase. I

         17  remember years ago I thought there was an

         18  understanding that whatever increases the

         19  Corporation Counsel got, the same things goes for

         20  the Assistant District Attorney. Evidently that is

         21  not the case from what I have been hearing here. And

         22  it appears to me that there is something very

         23  troubling here.

         24                 What does the State Constitution say

         25  about the funding of the District Attorneys'
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          2  Offices?

          3                 DISTRICT ATTORNEY MORGENTHAU: The

          4  City can't reduce the salary of the DA during his

          5  term of office.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Nothing about

          7  the ADA?

          8                 DISTRICT ATTORNEY MORGENTHAU: It

          9  doesn't say anything about it.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: There is

         11  nothing there about funding? In other words, as far

         12  as you are concerned you could be the District

         13  Attorney, sit in your office, they don't have to

         14  give you anything?

         15                 DISTRICT ATTORNEY MORGENTHAU: No, no

         16  obligation. No. But that is why we have a City

         17  Council.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Yes, we also

         19  have a Mayor.

         20                 DISTRICT ATTORNEY MORGENTHAU: If the

         21  Mayor doesn't do it.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Let me ask

         23  you this. The money that we gave you last year, the

         24  add-on money that we gave you last year, whatever it

         25  was, and after the Mayor -- did he veto your section
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          2  of the budget?

          3                 DISTRICT ATTORNEY MORGENTHAU: No.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: So you got

          5  what we had passed, as opposed to other offices.

          6                 DISTRICT ATTORNEY MORGENTHAU: Yes.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Like Legal

          8  Aid because he vetoed that. We put a 10 million and

          9  he vetoed that and settled for 5 million and this

         10  year they are not putting anything in.

         11                 So, that is the situation as far as

         12  the money is concerned, that the agreement has not

         13  been there.

         14                 Because as I understand it, just

         15  thinking out loud, when you get these youngsters out

         16  of law school, they are usually saddled with such

         17  debts, unless they come from very wealthy families,

         18  and even they sometimes have debts. And so when the

         19  top of their classes get these offers, huge offers,

         20  they really almost have no choice, even if they want

         21  to serve in the District Attorney's Office, because

         22  if they are going to repay their debts they are

         23  going to have to take these law firms, the offers of

         24  these law firms.

         25                 So, therefore, do you find it has an
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          2  impact on your minority lawyers, black and Hispanic

          3  lawyers in your offices?

          4                 MR. SHEPIS: Yes.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: So you would

          6  think that the failure to properly fund the salaries

          7  really is discriminatory, and it amounts to having

          8  less black and Hispanic Assistant District Attorneys

          9  in your office. Can that be documented?

         10                 If that is the case, then we have a

         11  terrific argument, I think.

         12                 DISTRICT ATTORNEY MORGENTHAU: I think

         13  it is a good argument.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Madame Chair,

         15  have you heard that, what we just went over?

         16                 Because of the lack of funding --

         17                 CO-CHAIRPERSON WATKINS: I did hear

         18  it.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Okay, good.

         20                 CO-CHAIRPERSON WATKINS: I used to be

         21  a school teacher, so I know how to listen to two

         22  things at once. It was a survival technique.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: It is

         24  certainly a case we have to make here. Because as a

         25  result of the failure to properly fund the salary
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          2  increase, at least the Corporation Counsel's --

          3                 CO-CHAIRPERSON WATKINS: Council

          4  Member, I did hear you. I think that parity is our

          5  best line of defense because the same situation

          6  exists in the office of DOI, and I think they may

          7  bring it up as they follow. This is something that

          8  we discussed with them also.

          9                 Let me just find out, what was the

         10  average increase, if anyone knows, that Corp Counsel

         11  assistants will be receiving based on this money in

         12  the budget?

         13                 DISTRICT ATTORNEY MORGENTHAU: The

         14  average increase, we just worked it out, the average

         15  increase is $5,800. I mean, on the basis of 4

         16  million, that would be $5,800 in assistant or merit

         17  increase.

         18                 CO-CHAIRPERSON WATKINS: And your ADAs

         19  are already at a disadvantage as far as pay parity?

         20                 DISTRICT ATTORNEY MORGENTHAU: Our

         21  starting, and I would imagine this is pretty

         22  generally true, our starting salaries are about

         23  $2,500 a year less than the Corporation Counsel.

         24                 MR. LHEIR: Ours are about 9,000 less.

         25  We start at $32,500. They start at about $40,000
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          2  something.

          3                 CO-CHAIRPERSON WATKINS: This is

          4  important information.

          5                 Ms. Brennan, gentlemen, and the other

          6  ladies who have been left to respond to our

          7  questions, I thank you very much, and particularly

          8  for the fact that your presentations and submissions

          9  to us make it unnecessary for us to ask some of the

         10  questions that might have been prepared. As usual

         11  you come very well prepared, so we learn a lot each

         12  time you come, and we will certainly --

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: We are also

         14  helped by the fact that there has been no changes

         15  from the January Plan.

         16                 CO-CHAIRPERSON WATKINS: Well, there

         17  has been very little change, except for the Queens

         18  DA, if I understood correctly. But we are going to

         19  put it all into the blender as we begin the serious

         20  budget negotiation, and all I can say is we will do

         21  the best we can, it requires that we find enough

         22  Peters to rob so that we can pay you Pauls, and that

         23  is what it really comes down to.

         24                 Thank you very much.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: We are going
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          2  to put it in the blender but we are not going to

          3  push the chop button.

          4                 (Hearing concluded at 5:45 p.m.)
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